
UNITED STATES ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AGENCY 

R~Xi-ION 4 

SAM l'iL'NN 


ATLANTA FEDERAL CENTER 
61 FORSYTH STREET 

ATLANTA GEORGIA J030,'-8960 

APR 08 2011

(:ERTIF£ED MAIL 
RETCHN RECEIPT REQt:ES{IIR 

Mr. Tom Holak 
M. A, Industries:, fnc. 
P.O. Box 2322 
Peachtree City, Georgia 30269 

SUBJECT: 	 M. A. Industries, Inc. 
Consent Agreement and Fina! Oroer 
Docket No. EPCRA-04-2011·2035(b) 

Dear Mr. Holak: 

Enclosed please find an executed copy of the Consent Agreement and Final Order 
(CAFO) that resolves the Emergency Planning and Community Right~to~Know Act of 1986 
]EPCRA) matter (Docket No. EPCRA·04-2011-2035(b» involving MA Industries, Tne. The 
CAFO was filed with the Regional Hearing Clerk, as required by 40 c'P.R Purt 22 ,md became 
dlcdiyc on the date of the tiling. 

Also enclosed, piease find a copy of the "Notice of Securities and Exchange Commission 
Registrants' Duty to Disclose Environmental Legat Proceeding~," This uocwnenl puls you on 
notice of your potential duty to disclose to the Security and Exchange Commim;ion (SEC) any 
envirorunental enlbrcement actions taken by the Envirorunental Protection Agency (EPA). if 
you have any que!'tions with regards: to the SEC's environmental disclosure requirements, you 
may reft'r to the contact phone number at th~ bottom ofth¢ SEC ~oticc. 

Ifyou have any questiuns, plea~c call Ms. Mary Beech at (4U4) 562~9669, 

Sincerely, 

, " v"')1'''\i JiC ... ... -jZ'~-.-. 

Caron B- Falconer, Chief 
EPCRA. Enforcement Section 

Endo!'ll1res 

h'!rnnetAdore55 (VRll· httJ):lfwww,epagov 

R~cl.diR~dable. P{i~;w ...,'t1 'kyu\uNu 0') ~d Inks on 8ecycl .. d POI,,!!· (Mil1i"nu"n 30% Pm;toonwmer) 




lNITED STATES ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AGENCY 
RF:GfON 4 

IN THE MATTER OF: ) ~- :},
) -, 

M, A, Industries, In\;, ) Docket Ntnuber: EPCRA-04-2011-2035(b)'. 
) , 

Respond<llL ) , ' 
--------) 

CONSENT AGREEMENLAND FINAL ORDeR 

L Nature of tl:te Action 
1. This is a civil pcnaJty proceeding pursuant to St:(;lion 325 of the Emergency 

Planning and Community Right-to-Know Ac[ (EPCRA), 42 U.s.C. § 11045, and pursuant to the 
Consolidated Rules of Practice (Joveming the Administrative ,Asses::1ment ofeivi! Penalties and 
the R\:vocationtreml1nation or Suspension of Permits (Consolidated Rules), codified at 40 
C.F.R. Part 22. Complainant is the Dircctorofthe Air, Pesticides and Toxics Management 
Division, Region 4. Gnited States Environmental Protection Agency (EPA). Re:;pondent is 
M, A. Industries, 1m:, 

2, Complainant and Respondent have conferred for the purpose of settlement 
pursunnt to 40 C.F.R. § 22.18 and desire to r~:;ulvc this matter and settle the allegations 
described herein withuul a formal hearing. Therefore, \;"lithout the taking of auy evidence or 
testimony, the making of any argument, or the adjudication of any issue in tbis matter, and in 
accordance with 40 C.F,R, § 22. 13(b) and 22.1f:{b), this Consent Agreement and Final Order 
(CAFO) will ;;.imultaneously commence and conclude this matter. 

3. The authority to take action undcr Section 325 of EPCRA. 42 lLS.C. 
§ 11045, i:; vested in the Adminb.-1.rator of EPA. The Administrator of EPA has delegated this 
authority under FPCRA to the Regional Administrators by EPA Dctegatio1122~3-A, dated 
May 11, 1994. nlt: Regional Administrator, Region 4, has redele-gated this authority to the 
Director, Air, Pesticides and Toxies !Y1anagement Divh:lioI4 by EPA Region 4 Delegation 22-3
A, date<i Novcmber S. 1994. Pursuant to that delegation, the Director of the Air, Peslh.:iJes and 
Toxics Management Division has the authority to commence an enforcement action a."> the 
Complainant in this matter, 

4. Respondent is M. A, Industries, Inc., a corporation doing b~inc:ss in the State of 
Georgia. 

5. Respondent is a "person" as delincd in SectiOll 329(7) ofEPCRA, 42 lULe. 
§ 11049(7), 



6, Respondent vv.ns and operates a ~facilily" as that tenn is defined by Section 
329(4) of EPCRA, 42 V.S.c, § 11049(4). 

7. Respondent's facility is located at 30;1: Dividend Drive, PI.-'achtree City. Georgia. 

S. Section 312 ofEPCRA, 42 U.S.c. § 11022, and the regulations found at 40 
C..F.R. Part 370, provide that the owner or operator ofa facility that 15: required to prepatt'· 01' 

have available a Material Safety Data Sheet (MSDS) for hazardous chemicals under the 
Occupational Safety and lIeaJth Act of 1970 (OSHA) and regulation, promulgated ander that 
Act, shall submit to the Local Emergency Planning COlIunittee (LEPC). fhe State Emergency 
Response Commission (SERe), and the fire department with jurisdiction over the facility, by 
March I, 1988, and on or before March I annually thereafter, a completed emergency and 
hazardous cbemical inventory foan (Tier 1 or Tier TT) as described in 
40 C.F.R. Part 370. eontniningthe infonnation required by that part for hazardou~ chemicaJs 
present at the facility at any une time in the calendar year in amuunts equal to or greater than 
10.000 pollilds and containing the intormation requi~-"'d by that part for extremely hazardous 
substances (EHS) present at the faemty at anyone time in amounts equal to or greater than the 
threshold planning quantity (TPQ) or 500 pounds, whichever is less. 

9. At sume time during the calendar years 01'2009,2008, and 2007, polypropylene 
homopolymer resin was present at the facility in an amount equal to or greater than 10,000 
pounds. 

10, Polypropylene homopolymer resin is a IOha2ardvus chemical" as defined by 
Section 329(5) of EPCRA. 42 U.S.C. § 11049(5)J for which Respondent is required to prcpare or 
have avail~b1e an MSDS under OSHA at its facility. 

11. Respondent failed to :;ubmit a completed Emergency and Ha7ardous Chemical 
Inventory Form for polypropylene homopolymer resin to the SERe, the LEPC, and Hre 
department withjurisdictiol'l over the facility fur calendar years 2009, 2008, and 2007, by March 
J of each year tblluwing the calendar year for which a report was It',quiroo. 

12. Respondent violated the reporting requirements of Section 312 of EPCR.Ac, 
42 U.S.C. § 11022. at its t'cility for calendar years 2009,2008, and 20117, and is therefore 
subject to the assessment ofpcnalties under Section 325 ofRPCRA, 42 U.S.C. § 11045. 

13. Pursuant 10 Section 325(c) of EPCRA, 42 U.s.C. § 11045(c), and 40 c.P.R. Part 
19, EPA may asse;:;s a penalty of not more than $37,500 for e:ach violation of Section 312 that 
occurred after January 12 j 2009. Each day a violation of Section 312 continues oonstitutes a 
separate v'olation. Civil penalties under Section 325(0) of EPCRA, 421LS.C. § 1I045(cl. may 
be assessed by Administrative Order. 
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IV. Consel1t Agreement 

14. For the purposes of this CAFO. Respondent admits the jurisdictional allegations 
set out above but nt::ithcr admits nor denies the factual allegations set out above, 

15. Respondent waives any right to contest the allegations and its right to appeal the 
proposed final order accomp-Mlying the Consent Agreement 

16. Respondent consents to the assessment of and agrees to pay the civil penally as 
,;et forth in this eMO. 

t 7, Respondent certifies tbat as of the date of its execntion oftrns eAfU, it is in 
compliance with all relevant requirements of EPCRA at the n~dlity. 

\ 8, Compliance with this CAf'O shall resolve the allegations afvioladon;; contained 
herein, Thb CAFO shall not otherwise affect any liability of Respondent to the United States 
other than as expressed herein. Neither EPA nor Complainant waives any right to bring an 
enforcement aClion against Respondent for a violation ofany federal or state statute, regulation 
or permit; to initiate an action for inuuJnCn1 and subs1at!tial endangerment; or to pursue criminal 
enforcement. 

19, Complainant and Respondent agree to setde this matter by their execution of this 
CAFO. The parties agree that the ~cttlcment ot'this marter is in the public interest and tbat this 
CAFO is consistent with the applicable requirements of EPCRA 

V, Final Order 

20. Respondent shall pay a civil penalty of FOURTEE1>I THOCSAND EIGHT 
HUNDRED DOLLARS ($14,800), lor tile violations alleged in Section 1Il. Payment shall be 
paid within thirty (30) days of the effective date of this CAFO. 

21. Respondent shall pay the penalty by forwarding a cashier's or certified check. 
payable to: I!Treasurer. l:nited States ofAmcrica,1I to one ot'the following addresses: 

HyMa;!; ll'y'oy!,rlJighJ; 
U.S. Environmental Protection Agency C.8. Bank 
Fines and Penalties Attn: Naralie Pearson (314) 418·4087 
Cincinnati Finance Center 1005 Convention Plaza 
P,O, Box 979077 Mail Station SL·MO·C2UL 
81. Louis, Missouri 63197-9000 Sf. Louis, Missouri 6310) 

The check shall reference on its face the name and the Docket Number of the CAFO. 

"l" At the time ofpayment, Respondent shall send a separate copy of the check, 
and a written statement that payment ba.'l been made in atXordance witb this CAFO, to the 

following persons at the following atidrI.!SSCS: 
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Regional Hearing Clerk 
U.S. EPA. Region 4 
61 Forsyih 81rce1. S.W. 
Allant., Georgia 30303 

Robert Scogin 
U.s. EPA, Region 4 
Air, Pesticides & Toxic::. Management Division 
61 Forsyth Street, S.W. 
Atlanta, Georgia 30303 

Saood! Wilson 
U.S. EPA, Region 4 
OHicc of EnvironmentaJ AccuuntabWty 
61 Forsyth SlIeet, S.W. 
Atlanta, Georgia 30303 

23, For the purpvses ofstate and federal income taxes, Respondent shall not be 
entitk'd, and agrees not to attempt, to claim a deduction for any civil penalty payment made 
pursuant to this CAro, Any attempt by Respondent t() deduct any such payments shall 
constitute a violation of this CAF'O. 

24, Pursuant to 31 U.S.c. § 3717, EPA (i) entitled to ll.">sess interest and penalties on 
debts owed to the United States and a charge to cover the cost of processing and handling a 
deHnquent claim, ltiterest will therefore begin 1.0 accrue on the civil penalty from the effective 
date of this CAFO tfthe penalty is not paid by the date required. Interc::it will be assessed at the 
rate established by (he Secretary of Treasury pursuant tu 31 U.S.C. § Ht? A charge will be 
assessed to cover the costs of debt collection, including processing and handling costs and 
attorney le~s, In addition, a penalty charge will be assessed on any portion of the debt that 
remains delinquent more than ninely (90) days after payment is due, 

25. Cornplaimml and Respondent shall bear their o"\';n costs and attorney fees in this 
matter. 

26. This CAFO shall be binding upon the Respondent, its successors and assigns, 

27, The foUm\<ing individual is authorized to receive service for EPA in this 
proceeding: 

Caron B. Falconer 
U.s. EPA, Region 4 
Air,. Pesticides & Toxic Management Division 
61 Forsyth Street, S.W. 
Atlanta, Georgia 30303 
(4()4)562-8451 
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28. Each lll1dersigncd representative of the parties to this CAFO certifies that he or 
she is fully authorized by the party represented to enter into this CAPO and legally bind that 
party to it. 

VI. Effective Date 

29. The effective dale of this CAFO shall be the d3te upon ""nich the CAPO is med 
with the Regional Hearing Clerk. 

AGREED AND CONSt"'lTED TO: 

By; _~.t~~~;lLl:K.~ Date:.3jHJ tI 
Beverly II. Banister, Din:ctor 
Air, Pesticides & Tbxics 


Management Division 

Region 4 


APPROVED A:.ID SO ORDERED this _7t--t/i_d,ay of ar0_.201 L 

/} J 

~.-J5~ 
Susan B. Schuh 
Regional Judicial Ofliccr 
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CERTIFICATEQF SERVICE 

1hereby certify that 1have this day served a true and correct copy of tlle foregoing 

Consent Agreement and Final Order, In the Matter ofM, A, Jndustries, Inc. LPocketNumber: 

EPCRA..()4·2011·203S(bl, on the parties lisleu below in Ule manner indiCJlted: 

Caron B. Falooner (Vi. EPA's internal mail) 
U.S. EPA, Region 4 
Air, Pesticides & Toxics Management Division 
61 Forsyth Srrcct 
Atlanta, Georgia 30303 

Robert Caplan (Via EPA's intemal mail) 
U.S. EPA, Region 4 
Office of Environmental Accountability 
61 forsyth Street 
Atlanta, Georgia 30303 

Mr. Tom Holak (Via Certified Mail· Return Receipt 
M. A Industries, Inc. Requested) 
P.O. Bcx 2322 
Peachtree City, GA 30269 

Date: _L.'-f_-_Zc-'::--'-J 
United States Envirorunental 
Protection Agency, Region 4 
Atlanta federal CC1ltcr 
61 Forsyth Street. S.W. 
Atlanta, GA 30303 
(404) 562·9511 

\ 

---
Patricia A. Bullock, Regionalllearing Clerk 

6 



_____ __ 

· 	, 


TO BE COl\ll'L!llJP BY THE ORIGI!!ADNG QmCIl! 

- (Atlada.copy oftbtbal on:&und t~ ittterto Defmd.anflR.tspoodenl) .i / I 

Thi&fmm. ...~bytSaUndl W111ij)~.___-;:;c~::;-________... --,1'-;;;:',,/:,0.:.1.:.1_ 

tN"lIIIW) (Dale) 

mdw R_.g.:.i_o_n __~~,_--~----------------~.(404)582~95044_._0_R_C_._O_EA to 

D 

(O!!i«) (T"",-N_l 

D N-.SF JudINl OnIctI(onst8i DKne 
tJSAOCOLLECTS 

~ 0nkrIC0IIISaII& ACJ'UCDItt1l 
FMO COLLECTS PAYMENT 

D D 

=:J """"......... ,C....................... 


D This is a 1DII!((jft..... 

The C.:&IIIt I>ott;tt NwIbc:r: ___.;;2;....:·_·_~."_/_';..'_'..;..'-,'1_'_:;..",-c.:.1_'_-,,£,;;.'.'_"~'~'~'--'(.:.'..1.)__________ 

Tbe SikSptcl1k Supef"fu.M ,\ctOtlI'ItNumber. _____________________ 

..... rEMS __._CoamoI_'" 	 ______ 
If JmI hoe., ~ pUtiMQD::_ _ vi tht F"UtaDdaI ~ StctMl at; -r-

O1fIlUBt)'TION: 

A. 	 £l1DlCfAL QIWEISf c.,. tIC tW& r_1Ifidt _lIttadIeIJ cUpy.r1lle fnMItpapflfth8 FJNALJI.lPICML 0UI 
dIauiIl be IIIIIiINl* 

1. 
E••~EnlerntllllMSetticMt....-"""'"o.,.t. t"J1adtt:.IM I...,,.0.""'611.......FnakliaStltloe 

w~n.c. ... 

I. 
_0....-_ad n.....tpalcd 'Pn:Jput omce 

RepDIII CO!J.IISd (EAD) 

http:J1adtt:.IM

